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Request for Proposals (RFP)              Addendum #1 
City of Torrance | 3031 Torrance Blvd, Torrance CA 90503 | www.TorranceCA.Gov 
 

RFP No. B2016-38 

 
RFP for Engineering Design Services for Anza Ave Rehabilitation (190th 
St to Sepulveda Blvd), I-144  
 

 
There are no changes to the RFP submittal Due Date, Time or Location:  

 

RFP SUBMITTAL INFORMATION 
Proposals may be mailed or hand delivered. No faxed Proposals will be accepted. 

Late bids will not be accepted. 
Location: Office of the City Clerk 

3031 Torrance Blvd. 
Torrance, CA 90503 

                          Date: Monday, September 19, 2016 
Time Deadline: 3:00 P.M. Local (Pacific) Time 

 
 

 The following changes are hereby incorporated into the subject RFP: 
 

Original Specification Changed Specification 
 
SECTION 1 – INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION, 
Prevailing Wage, page 4: 
 
Prevailing Wage: 
The State of California Senate Bill 7 (SB7) applies to 
construction contracts over $25,000 and contracts for 
alteration, demolition, repair and maintenance over 
$15,000.  There are no exemptions.  The contract 
issued as a result of this RFP is subject to prevailing 
wages for any classification included in the State’s 
prevailing wage determination. Current prevailing wage 
determination rates may be found at the State of 
California Dept. of Industrial Relations website 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm
 

 
SECTION 1 – INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION, 
Prevailing Wage, page 4: 
 
Prevailing Wage: 
The State of California Senate Bill 7 (SB7) applies to 
construction contracts over $25,000 and contracts for 
alteration, demolition, repair and maintenance over 
$15,000.  There are no exemptions.  The contract 
issued as a result of this RFP is subject to prevailing 
wages for any classification included in the State’s 
prevailing wage determination, including but not limited 
to, surveyors, field soils and materials technicians, and 
nondestructive testing field technicians. Current 
prevailing wage determination rates may be found at 
the State of California Dept. of Industrial Relations 
website 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK II – 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN, Design Topographic 
Survey, 4th bullet point, page 16: 
 

 Provide 0.5 ft contours. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK II – 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN, Design Topographic 
Survey, 4th bullet point, page 16: 
 

 Provide 1.0 ft contours. 
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ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK II – 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN, Pavement Evaluation 
Review/Design, page 17: 

 
Pavement Evaluation Review/Design 

The Consultant must provide a pavement 
evaluation/analysis report.  The first step 
must be to determine, as accurately as 
possible, the existing structural section(s) 
from as-built drawings and other available 
resources and verifying that information 
using ground-penetrating radar testing.  
Then, based on data gathered during utility 
investigations, ground-penetrating radar 
testing, visual inspections, and discussions 
with the City, the Consultant must, when 
directed by the City, obtain pavement 
corings at locations determined by the City.  
The coring data will help corroborate the 
Consultant’s research and also determine 
the composition and properties of the 
underlying structural section and soil.  For 
estimating purposes, the Consultant must 
assume a total of 20 corings. 
 
Based on Traffic Indexes and existing 
conditions, the final report must provide 
recommendations for pavement 
rehabilitation alternatives that should 
include: localized repair with full-width or 
edge grind/overlay, pavement 
reconstruction, slurry seal, and/or other 
reasonable methods.  Consultant must 
review the report and discuss the 
recommended pavement rehabilitation 
alternatives with the City prior to developing 
the 90% plans.  Tasks, in addition to the 
research and testing described above, must 
include the following: 
 

 Assess data and evaluate methods of 
pavement rehabilitation. 

 Prepare value engineering estimates 
with cost estimates for up to three (3) 
alternatives, including comparisons 
based on projected life of AC 
pavement. 

 Present and discuss recommendations 
with City.  After concurrence of 
pavement rehabilitation method by the 
City, the final limits of removal must be 
shown on the plans. 

 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK II – 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN, Pavement Evaluation 
Review/Design, page 17: 

 
Pavement Evaluation Review/Design 

The Consultant must provide a pavement 
evaluation/analysis report.  The first step 
must be to determine, as accurately as 
possible, the existing structural section(s) 
from as-built drawings and other available 
resources and verifying that information using 
ground-penetrating radar testing.  Then, 
based on data gathered during utility 
investigations, ground-penetrating radar 
testing, visual inspections, and discussions 
with the City, the Consultant must, when 
directed by the City, obtain pavement corings 
at locations determined by the City.  The 
coring data will help corroborate the 
Consultant’s research and also determine the 
composition and properties of the underlying 
structural section and soil.  For estimating 
purposes, the Consultant must assume a 
total of 10 corings.  As an optional task, the 
City may request ground penetrating radar 
testing to supplement the corings to further 
substantiate the existing pavement sections 
(description for this optional task is described 
under Task V on page 22).   
 
Next, the consultant must conduct flexible 
pavement deflection testing in accordance 
with California Test 356 to measure the 
structural adequacy of the existing pavement.   
 
Based on Traffic Indexes, existing conditions, 
and deflection studies, the final report must 
provide recommendations for pavement 
rehabilitation alternatives that should include: 
localized repair with full-width or edge 
grind/overlay, pavement reconstruction, slurry 
seal, and/or other reasonable methods.  
Recommendations shall be provided for both 
10-year and 20-year service life expectancies.  
Consultant must review the report and 
discuss the recommended pavement 
rehabilitation alternatives with the City prior to 
developing the 90% plans.  Tasks, in addition 
to the research and testing described above, 
must include the following: 
 

 Assess data and evaluate methods of 
pavement rehabilitation. 
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 Prepare value engineering estimates 
with cost estimates for up to three (3) 
alternatives, including comparisons 
based on projected life of AC pavement 
(10-year and 20-year service life 
expectancies). 

 Present and discuss recommendations 
with City.  After concurrence of 
pavement rehabilitation method by the 
City, the final limits of removal must be 
shown on the plans. 

 
 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK IV, 
PROJECT COORDINATION, page 21: 
 

Record Drawings [OPTIONAL TASK] 
The Consultant must prepare record 
drawings following the completion of 
construction.  A red-line set of record 
drawings will be provided to the Consultant.  
Consultant must utilize the red-line markups 
to create record drawings using AutoCAD, 
and must submit one complete set of mylar 
plans.  Consultant must also provide all 
electronic files of the record drawings, with 
associated external reference files, blocks, 
and plot configurations.  Consultant should 
assume 3 hours of drafting work per design 
sheet (excluding traffic control sheets) for 
purposes of the proposal.   

 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK IV, 
PROJECT COORDINATION, page 21: 
 

Delete this paragraph in its entirety, as this task is 
also included under Task V – OPTIONAL TASKS. 

 
Record Drawings [OPTIONAL TASK] 

The Consultant must prepare record drawings 
following the completion of construction.  A 
red-line set of record drawings will be provided 
to the Consultant.  Consultant must utilize the 
red-line markups to create record drawings 
using AutoCAD, and must submit one 
complete set of mylar plans.  Consultant must 
also provide all electronic files of the record 
drawings, with associated external reference 
files, blocks, and plot configurations.  
Consultant should assume 3 hours of drafting 
work per design sheet (excluding traffic control 
sheets) for purposes of the proposal.   

 
 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK V – 
OPTIONAL TASKS, page 22: 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 SCOPE OF WORK, TASK V – 
OPTIONAL TASKS, page 22: 
 

Add the following paragraph in its entirety: 
 

Ground Penetrating Radar Testing 
To supplement information available from as-
built drawings and pavement corings, the City 
may request the use of ground penetrating 
radar testing to verify existing pavement 
structural sections.  Ground penetrating radar 
testing shall be performed continuously along 
each travel lane within the project limits.  
[ALSO ADD AN ADDITIONAL LINE ITEM 
FOR THIS TASK ON THE PROPOSED 
SCHEDULE OF FEES – ATTACHMENT 4 OF 
RFP]. 
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Addendum Issued By Order Of,  

        
               
       /s/ Shin Furukawa    
        

Shin Furukawa, P.E. 
       Engineering Manager 
       September 12, 2016  
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The following are responses to questions received by the City: 
 

Question City’s Response 
 
Q1. Is there a proposal page limit? 
 

 
A1. No. 

 
Q2. If there will be multiple subconsultants utilized, 
can the proposer submit multiple sheets of page 9? 
 

 
A2. Yes.  Use separate pages for each subconsultant. 

 
Q3. What is the difference between firm references 
and candidate references as listed on page 10 of the 
RPF? 
 

 
A3.  Candidate references may apply if references are to 
be listed for particular individuals within the firm who 
have done similar work previously while employed with 
another firm.  
 

 
Q4. Can we have a list of traffic engineering 
consultants the City has recently hired on recently 
completed successful projects? 
 

 
A4. There is no list. 

 
Q5. What are the limits of work at each end?  How 
much of the 190th and Sepulveda intersections are 
expected to be surveyed and mapped and is 
monument preservation required for these two 
intersections? 
 

 
A5. The north limit is on Anza Ave at the BCR to 190th 
St.  The south limit is on Anza Ave at the BCR to 
Sepulveda Blvd.  Topographic survey and monument 
preservation in the intersections will be as needed to 
facilitate the design of the adjacent roadway and/or as 
will be affected by nearby construction work. 
 

 
Q6. Is work on the frontage roads included in the 
project scope? 
 

 
A6. No. Where frontage roads exist, work will not extend 
beyond the landscaped islands. 
 

 
Q7. Any anticipated right-of-way takes for widening? 
 

 
A7. The project includes no roadway widening. 
 

 
Q8. Is environmental clearance work included in the 
scope of work? 
 

 
A8. No. 

 
Q9. Has there been a soils investigation previously 
performed, and if so, can a copy be provided? 
 

 
A9. Yes, see attached. 
 

 
Q10. Will traffic control plans be required for taking 
core samples?  We anticipate single lane closures. 
 

 
A10. Traffic control plans will not be required for the 
taking of core samples.  However, a contractor must 
use the City of Torrance standards for traffic control for 
the appropriate lane closure.  The City of Torrance 
Standards can be found at 
http://www.torranceca.gov/13023.htm    
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Q11. Will Traffic Control for the Ground Survey of this 
Project be required at the intersections only or for the 
entire length of the Project? 

 
A11. Traffic control plans will not be required for the 
topographic survey.  Traffic control, as required, shall 
be set up in accordance with the City of Torrance 
Standards and per the CAMUTCD. 
 

 
Q12. Can we backfill the cores with onsite excavated 
soils and sand?  Can we use rapid-set concrete for 
pavement repair at the core locations? 
 

 
A12. Yes to both. 

 
Q13. Is a detailed topographic survey necessary for 
this project?  A detailed survey at 50’ cross-sections 
within the limits of the project will be a high cost and is 
not a typical task in a pavement rehabilitation project.  
  

 
A13. Please propose based on the scope described in 
the RFP.  If this task is later deemed excessive or 
unnecessary, the City will reserve the right to modify the 
scope and renegotiate the fee for any associated work. 
 

 
Q14. Will the City be interested in obtaining an Aerial 
Topo to generate the Base for this Project? 

 
A14. An aerial topo is not required. 

 
Q15. The RFP lists ground penetrating radar and 
coring for the existing pavement section investigation.  
We want to confirm that the City wants both procedures 
performed. 
 

 
A15. Yes, based on the revised scope of work discussed 
on pages 2 and 3 of the addendum. 

 
Q16. The scope of work on page 19 ”Roadway 
Rehabilitation Plan and Profile” seems extremely 
detailed for a pavement rehabilitation project.  Given 
the project budget, we do not anticipate removing and 
replacing a lot of curb and gutter.  Can you confirm the 
City wants the consultant to prepare profiles for the top 
of curb?  
 

 
A16. Please propose based on the scope described in 
the RFP.  If this task is later deemed excessive or 
unnecessary, the City will reserve the right to modify the 
scope and renegotiate the fee for any associated work. 

 
Q17. Any known specific areas that would be ADA 
challenges?   
 

 
A17. No. This will be determined during the design 
phase. 
  

 
Q18. Any drainage problem areas that need attention 
or remediation? 
 

 
A18. Consultant to determine based on topographic 
survey. 

 
Q19. Will there be any phasing or will the entire route 
be improved at once? 
 

 
A19.  Phasing will be required to allow portions of the 
roadway to remain open during construction. 
 

 
Q20. Any businesses, hospitals, etc. along the route 
that will require 24/7 access? 
 

 
A20. None known at this time. 
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Q21. Assuming City staff will keep local business and 
residents informed and perform outreach education, 
workshops, mailers, advertising, etc.? 
 

 
A21. Outreach efforts are not part of the consultant’s 
scope of work. 

 
Q22. What are the funding sources for the project 
and will the consultant be responsible for assisting 
the City with submitting reports to the funding 
agencies? 
 

 
A22.  Gas Tax funds. No assistance is required. 

 
Q23. Who will be performing and reviewing certified 
payrolls, payment to contractors, etc. 
 

 
A23. Not part of this RFP. 

 
Q24. Who will be performing construction staking and 
providing survey control? 
 

 
A24. Not part of this RFP. 

 
Q25. Who will be performing project construction 
inspections, oversight? 
 

 
A25. Not part of this RFP. 

 
Q26. Is temporarily losing parking going to be a game 
changer for certain businesses along the route?   
 

 
A26. The City is not aware of any issues. 
 

 
Q27. Who are businesses/tenants/residences most 
against this project or is there a lot or public support 
for the project? 
 

 
A27. Unknown. 

 
Q28. Any undergrounding of overhead utilities being 
required? 
 

 
A28. No. 
 

 
Q29. Any replacement of underground utilities i.e. 
storm drain, sewer line replacements or upsizing, for 
future stubbing? 
 

 
A29. Only related to traffic signal conduits. 

 
Q30. For the preparation of the base sheets, can the 
exiting utility (storm drain, sewer, water) depths/inverts 
be based on City-provided as-builts, or will the depths 
need to be verified via survey? 
 

 
A30. Yes. If certain information is missing, then that 
information may need to be obtained via field survey. 

 
Q31. If there is no underground utility work being 
performed, what is the reason for the $10,000 utility 
potholing task? 
 

 
A31. Utility potholing may be needed, based on the 
City’s preference.  The consultant would only charge for 
actual work performed. 
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Q32. In the “Utility Potholing” section of the RFP, 
does the City expect that the marking of utilities is to 
be completed via Dig Alert?  Please confirm that the 
coordination of Dig Alert of similar service will be 
within the Consultant’s scope of work. 
 

 
A32. Yes to both. 
 

 
Q33. Are new street lights being proposed for the 
entire project or just pockets? 
 

 
A33. No new street lights are being proposed.  Lighting 
improvements will be installed at existing traffic signals. 
 

 
Q34. What is the extent of traffic signal pole 
replacements included in the project? 
 

 
A34. Traffic signal pole replacements will be two existing 
Type 15 poles each at the intersections of Halison St, 
Spencer St, Emerald St and Lenore St (8 poles total).  
Poles will be replaced with Type 17-2-100 poles. 
 

 
Q35. Does the City desire full actuation for the 
existing traffic signals that are currently semi-
actuated? 
 

 
A35. Yes.  

 
Q36. The RFP states that existing loop detection will 
be converted to video.  Will that also include existing 
advanced loops? 
 

 
A36. Advanced detection exists at the Del Amo Blvd and 
Carson St intersections.  Yes, proposed video detection 
zones at the intersections must include the area of the 
existing advanced loops. 
 

 
Q37. What kind of landscape work is included in the 
project scope?  Will the anticipated landscape 
upgrades require separate landscape plans or are they 
minor in nature and can be part of the street 
improvement plans? 

 

 
A37. Landscape work will generally consist of removal 
of certain existing trees impacting curbs, gutters or 
sidewalks, planting of trees in vacant parkway 
locations, and installation of stamped concrete in 
certain locations within the islands separating the 
mainline from the service roads.  No irrigation work is 
anticipated.  The landscape work can be shown on the 
street improvement plans. 
 

 
Q38. Do you anticipate adding any landscaped 
medians to the existing street sections? 
 

 
A38. No. 

 
Q39. Does all existing landscaping need to be shown, 
including tree size and species? 
  

 
A39. Tree sizes (DBH) need to be shown, but 
identification of species is not necessary.  General 
locations of shrubbery in the islands need to be shown, 
so that locations for installation of stamped concrete can 
be identified. 
 

 
 

 
 
 










































































































